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Pilot

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Friday April 1, 2011
Writer: Tom Spezialy
Director: Brett Ratner
Show Stars: Kurtwood Smith (H.J. Higgins), Carmen Ejogo (Fay Carson), James

Murray (Billy Collins), Tim Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), Christina Cole
(Adele Ferrer), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Freddy Rodriguez (Rick
Martinez)

Guest Stars: Tommy Europe (Policeman), John Shaw (Gate Guard), Bambadjan
Bamba (Kaya), Adam Godley (Jonathan Aldridge), Frank Bruynbroek
(Vidor), Ilia Volok (Clarkson), Molly Hagan (Ms. Lurkin), Alessandro
Juliani (Higgins’ Aide), Margo Martindale (Doris Balshik), Rick Over-
ton (Operative Alan Blanke)

Production Code: 1ASM79
Summary: After his new job at the CIA is cut on day one, Rick Martinez is enlisted

by the CIA Deputy Director to be a mole in a team of unruly agents that
he would love to fire. But, when the agents end up getting dirt on Rick,
he’s forced to play by their rules.

Martinez shows up for his first day in
the CIA, in Virginia, with homemade soup
from his mother. When he says he’s
got fluids, the security guard looks up
his name in a computer database and
gives him a look, shuts the entrance and
armed teams converge on him. Seems the
terrorist watchlist and the new employees
list got mixed up. Martinez is apologized
to, but then is asked if he plans to exit the
country using any airports and the agent
is relieved to hear the answer is no.

He enters the lobby, completely empty
of any person except one older man who lead him to the covert agency he wants to enter. The
meeting with the Director doesn’t go well, the department Martinez was meant to join has been
eliminated. Martinez goes into an entire spiel about how he dreamed of being a CIA agent his
whole life. Then the Director says he might be of use infiltrating the covert disruptive service
branch, filled with ne’er do wells and risky characters. Office of Destructive Services. Martinez
claims a knowledge of Arabic as a childhood skill to prepare for an Agency career. Martinez jumps
at the chance, then is given a desk in the ODS office with several fast-talking men in suits. He is
cloaked in the veneer of youthful innocence.

Martinez gets introduced to a Scot, a nerdy older man, and a CIA ”face” type. These men glibly
deride the agency, mention cost cutting is so drastic they had to steal his office chair, and give
Martinez a Windows 97 computer. Martinez is Puerto Rican. Casey Malick is a ”proud fermenter
of negativity”. Michael Dorsey is a tactical genius with a fevered brain. They are suspicious of
Director Higgins, and Martinez.

The other men all get a text message and jump in the car, and Martinez is dragged along.
They say plutonium residue has been traced. They canvass Washington D. C. in a car chase,
culminating in a setup of two spies. But then he is told their cover is broken and Martinez must
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hand the documents to their allegedly insecure Homeland Security agent, ”Clarkson”. Martinez
runs to the man and gives him the package of codes, astonished to learn he speaks Russian.
Back in the car he learns the ODS men set him up to incriminate him. Now they have pictures
that could send him to jail.

Martinez then is let in on an open secret: the Director wants to sandbag the rescue of a
hostage taken abroad. He goes home and is told he needs to play his cards right. Martinez asks
”I have cards?”. Dorsey tells Martinez they’ll leak the news to the press if Martinez squawks
to Higgins. They show Martinez the hostage video. They send Martinez into a Higgins meeting
to argue the hostage rescue, but Martinez himself is ambushed by the Director. The Aldridge
hostage situation is rejected. The woman agent in the meeting asks Martinez for a drink, but
then one of the CHAOS group pluck him out of it and take him away.

Higgins defines success as the absence of failure. Inaction has become the CIA watchword.
He’s told the man wandering the lobby is unemployed. The team are determined to go in anyway
without agency sanction. Another female agent takes Martinez out to dinner, and makes a move.
But Dorsey shows up and drags Martinez out, saying Fay is a Higgins plant. The French operative
tells them of the rebel’s location. They need $8 million. Casey goes for a massage.

The ”face” man Dorsey makes a cunning deal with a woman managing the counterfeit office,
to give them fake cash for the rescue, and she is promised a Greek Agency job or he will burn.
She comes on to Martinez, ignoring the Scot’s charm. The Scot mimics a killer Sean Connery
accent, a ”siren’s call to reckless fornication”. She wants a Greek station. Dorsey says he spent
3 weeks duct taped to the Mediterranean field director. Then Martinez finds out Fay is Michael
Dorsey’s ex-wife, and that Higgins is gunning for him.

When Higgins orders Martinez brought in, they find the cellphone with a tracking device on a
pigeon in the courtyard. Martinez’ phone rings and his mother says the ”code words’, osso paux,
the gumbo he was bringing for lunch. Higgins is intrigued. Then the men take a camelback trip
to the Aldridge rebel camp. Martinez learns that only if they fail will they get in trouble.

In Afghanistan, the ODS team send in the nerd Casey to be taken. He is derided by Martinez as
”the human weapon”. The squad approach the tents and Martinez translates. The rebels almost
cut off Dorsey’s hand when Martinez blurts out their cover. As proof of their fearlessness he
gobbles down a scorpion, impressing the bandits. They effect a sort of deal with the rebel bandits
holding the prisoners. The team survey the starving prisoners and other hostages in the camp.
They turn over the counterfeit money as a down payment and ask for Aldridge’ proof of life.

Back at their own camp the men compliment Martinez and apologise for lying to him. casey
says to give him a piece of the spoil. Martinez gives a heartfelt speech about acceptance and
gratitude to the men. He calls them heroes. Then they give him a Mickey in some alcohol. He
passes out. Next thing he knows, Martinez wakes up a rebel hostage, which forces the Director
to act because he is a U. S citizen. The earpiece taped to his ear has a Scottish voice telling him
what to do.

Martinez is then shell shocked comically in the final ”shock and awe” type rescue, and they
run to the dark desert night. Dorsey says helicopters are coming. The gunshots sound from
the camp, and a panicked Malick asks how to say ”I surrender” in Arabic. He runs away, and
Martinez shouts his disappointment. Then when the group are covered by the rebels, Malick
becomes a human weapon, a blur of motion and action. He chastises Martinez later for his
doubts.

This cements his loyalty to the group. After the exposure, his career as a mole is on shaky
ground. But Higgins permanently assigns Martinez to the ODS. Fay is charmed by Martinez’
gratitude for leaking the report and they fly back to his apartment, commingling frantically. But
then the lights go on and the ODS team is in Martinez’ apartment. They’ve been activated, as
payback for the Aldridge matter. Is Martinez coming?

Casey throws Martinez the bag he packed for him and they proceed to the Cambodian jungle,
There they encounter elephants and a rice paddy guerrilla group with pointed rifles.
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Song of the North

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Friday April 8, 2011
Writer: Jace Richdale
Director: Ron Underwood
Show Stars: Carmen Ejogo (Fay Carson), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Kurtwood

Smith (H.J. Higgins), James Murray (Billy Collins), Tim Blake Nelson
(Casey Malick), Freddy Rodriguez (Rick Martinez), Eric Close (Michael
Dorset)

Guest Stars: Eddie Shin (Lee Quan Song), Joy Osmanski (Unchin Song), Malcolm
Stewart (Burt Hecker), Loretta Walsh (Linda), Sarah Surh (Dae)

Production Code: 1ASM03
Summary: In order to get a North Korean diplomat to defect, the Chaos agents

must also smuggle his entire family of the Communist country. Pos-
ing as anti-capitalism entrants, the agents use the Pyongyang Film
Festival as cover to accomplish the mission.

The UN Ambassador for North Korea falls
asleep during the meeting on C-SPAN and
wakes up to cheer his own governments’
denunciation. This is a career breaker.
The ODS is sent to get him before Lee
Kwan Song goes back to a cold reception
in North Korea. (death). Dorsey sends
Martinez to the roof to get rid of him but
there is the Ambassador Song trying to
jump off the roof. Martinez can only get
him back by promising to get his wife out
of North Korea.

The Director Higgins tells Martinez it’s
his job because the White House and the
press demand he keeps Yung as a defec-

tor. This can only happen with the wife’s extraction. Martinez panics. With the ODS team they
cook up a plan with documents and exit strategy and Martinez presents these to the Director,
who has no option but to try it. Blank has track shoes for walkign the miles of hallway at the
CIA.

Mrs. Song works in the North Korean Ministry of Culture. The CIA propaganda man in charges
of movies checks out the angles. The Pyongyang international film festival is happening. The men
take over an American entry into the Korean film festival about ”American Totalitarianism” by
changing their status and by throwing the producer Lars Glockner in jail. They make up a phony
identity with passport for Carol Cho. Masey says if lackeys in totalitarian regimes could connect
the dots they’d connect ”starving” with ”leader” and revolt.

The team go to picturesque PyongYang. They make contact with the Song’s wife, who speaks
for the People’s Democratic Republic. She has no idea what happened with her husband and
says to them ”Your government lies to you”. Dorsey sits next to her and shows her the C-SPAN
video on a smartphone. She flees in tears and reject their explanations. But next day at their
screening she shows. Casey enjoys the only candy bar he smuggled in.

They plan to smuggle her out by plane but she shows up with her sister and their family.
Impossibly she demands they bring them with her. The team scrambles as the plan keeps chang-
ing. Yung is brought in but panics when he learns about the change in plans. Back at the CIA
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things are happening. The attractive new deputy Director talks with the new Chairman of the
Intelligence Committee while the Director is out. He does not relinquish his phone on the way in.

The team hide in the woods and camp out. Martinez discusses the woman he would have died
for, and so does Casey. Dorsey volunteers no information. Nor does Billy.

As the team tries to get past border security into China, the new Congressonal chairperson
tells the world on C-SPAN about the extraction. But they aren’t safely on a plane. The Director is
forced to let him make a phone call to his wife because he threatens to accuse the United States
of kidnapping his wife. (The team would be in jeopardy). The wife argues if there is a hope of
getting out they have to take it.

The security at the border goes on full alert but the Director gets an assurance of cooperation
with China. They use the tour bus and ram the gate. Casey goes haywire on the guards. As the
team and refugees run across the bridge, one North Korean officer gets up and cracks a rifle.
They turn to face death and capture, then the soldier throws down the rifle and holds up his
hands in ”surrender”. Dorsey says ”What’s one more?” and the guard hurries across to defect as
well.

Back at the CIA the Ambassador greets his wife unemotionally, as the team reflect on the
experience. Billy shares his story of the fatal woman. Dorsey is quiet.
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Love and Rockets

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Friday April 15, 2011
Writer: David Gerken, Matt Ward
Director: Ron Underwood
Show Stars: Freddy Rodriguez (Rick Martinez), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), James

Murray (Billy Collins), Tim Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), Carmen Ejogo
(Fay Carson), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Kurtwood Smith (H.J. Hig-
gins)

Guest Stars: Rick Overton (Operative Blanke), Pasha Lychnikoff (Alexei Dratschev),
Matthew Harrison (Higgins’ Aide), Michael Badalucco (Fred Farmer),
Emily Foxler (Masha), Marina Eva (Tatiana), Ahmad Sharmrou
(Moradi), Shaker Paleja (CIA Suit), Vladmir Moskovchenko (Dratschev
Butler)

Production Code: 1ASM06
Summary: Complications and distractions abound when the CHAOS agents infil-

trate an arms dealer’s Russian compound with the intent to capture
him. Posing as lawyers, the agents must put their improv skills to
work.

The CHAOS division of ODS gets but-
tonholed in the CIA halls by Blank, the
roamer without a job. He hands over de-
tailed plans for bringing in known crimi-
nal Dratchov. This former Russian arms
agent is actually a King of a small strip of
Russia. The plans look good for them to
pose as lawyers. Dratchov has asked for
a team of immigration lawyers to advise
him on expatriation to France. Blank is
coming because he has a Yale law degree.

Transmystria is a far away place but
the Director approves the mission when

Casey proves he can stay in a tiny space for 12 hours. The Director Higgins drops a rat inside
the space just to test Casey. Martinez tells his new blonde girlriend that they can associate but
have to file paperwork. She asks if they are at the paperwork stage yet. He is not sure. She says
his new mission carries risk.

Then men arrive in Transmystria and hide Casey in the area under the SUV back seat. Michael
Dorsey, Billy, Blank, and Rick Martinez get to the mansion and meet Dratchov. He toys with them
but the arrangement discussions move along. Then they get the bad news: he isn’t the one being
moves to the West. He wants safety for his daughters. Dorsey says the mission is still on.

Tatiana and Masha are the daughters. Martinez couples up with the wild card Tatiana, while
Billy gets to know the smart blonde, who wants to go to Oxford. She asks him where he lived on
campus. Billy talks in circles. Masha knows the security code to the house which actually helps
keep troublemaker Tatiana inside. Tons of security shroud the mansion in tight defenses.

Halothane knocks the guards out. Casey Malick gets the exterior shots of the bomb. When
they seem ready to go Martinez pauses and gets a shot of a visitor, an Iranian Colonel buying
the nukes. The pictures go to HQ. They run the rockets through the ordnance database and
identify them as Russian cloud seasoning agents turned into dirty bomb rocket weapons. ”Milk
the clouds to make it rain”.
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The ODS squad discuss arrangements with Dratchov for the daughters to live abroad. Mar-
tinez says ”Your daughters will be safer than ever”. The men learn that Dratchov had a son,
Michael, who was lost partying abroad. Dratchov said he didn’t know a man like him couldn’t
have children safe until too late. As Blank dithers over a pool shot Dratchov details his ultimate
revenge on the men. This is a non-subtle warning.

Casey disarms the security system and the chopper is on the way. Billy infiltrates Tatiana’s
bedroom to get them out of the house but gets a pistol cracking instead. Tatiana is sleeping with
one of the guards. Billy tries Masha the smart sister, who detects that he wants the alarm off,
he didn’t go to Oxford and isn’t a lawyer. Billy says if she’s so smart where does she think the
money for the way she lives come from. He says they aren’t there to hurt her father but innocent
people will die if they don’t get out.

Martinez drives the truck with the rockets to the LZ but the chopper can’t take the weight.
The pilot takes off and Casey hides in the woods. All the other men turn to face the onrushing
guards and weaponry aimed at them. Dratchov take them to the mansion but hits the roof
when he realizes Masha betrayed him. Dratchov knows they are CIA. The Director gets word the
operatives aren’t on the chopper and starts a meeting but gets a call from Dratchov. He says the
CIA men will die unless the chopper comes back with his merchandise.

The Director makes excuses but Dratchov detects this. He sends a man outside with Blank to
kill him. Casey calls Washington DC but the Director wants to send a rescue mission. The closest
op group is in Rammstein. To mobilize an extraction will take too much time. The Director stalls
on the phone to Dratchov, who doesn’t buy it. He sends an assassin out to shoot Blank. But
nothing more is heard from either of them.

Dratchov taunts the men in the study but they say their most dangerous operative is at work,
a shadow of incredible power. Dratchov says the man who left the study was an idiot. Casey says
he’ll take care of it all himself. Casey rescues Blank and cuts down most of Dratchov’s forces.
Casey gets to the study just as Billy and Martinez tell Dratchov he can get what he really wants,
safety for his daughters. Dratchov goes into the hallway and almost shoots Blank who is holding
a pool cue. His daughters watch from upstairs, seeing him either kill Blank or give in. he decides
to give in.

Back at the Agency, the Director tries to make nice with Mallick because of his incredible
talents and gives him a bottle of cognac. The Director wants a show of mutual respect in front of
the other operatives. All of the rockets are disposed of. Mallick says no thanks. The man Blank
gets his own office with a desk, a special title, and a phone with a dial tone. Billy talks on the
phone to Masha who is living in his flat in London.
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Two Percent

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Saturday May 28, 2011
Writer: Chris Dingess
Director: Jeff Melman
Show Stars: Freddy Rodriguez (Rick Martinez), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Tim

Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), James Murray (Billy Collins), Carmen
Ejogo (Fay Carson), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Kurtwood Smith
(H.J. Higgins)

Guest Stars: Colin Foo (Mr. Lee), Tzi Ma (Quon), Zen Shane Lim (Chang), Illeana
Douglas (Linda), Matthew Harrison (Higgins’ Aide), Rick Overton (Op-
erative Blanke)

Production Code: 1ASM08
Summary: Casey’s off his game when the team heads to China to extricate a

compromised female spy who just happens to have been his former
girlfriend. The team decides to finish her assignment and continue on
the trail of a major terrorist.

Rick and his girlfriend the Deputy Di-
rector are interested but keep it profes-
sional inside the agency . Casey in the
CIA lunchroom makes the point that he
could come at Casey but Malick has three
ways to kill him instantly. Martinez goes
back into the office and asks Michael and
Billy who blurt out three ways each to kill
Martinez.

There is a massive intelligence leak
posted online. The mission Tea Tree is
to find the Al Quaeda leak. And the
Hong Kong CIA can’t find Linda Phillips.
Deputy Director approves the ODS to go
there and against pressure from Higgin’s
subordinate) is assigned to go.

In Hong Kong the gang visit a dead
drop which is empty. Casey smells a rat and also confides he lived with agent Phillips for two
years when he was stationed in Hong Kong. he goes to their old apartmnt. In Langley, Director
Higgins is having gallstone surgery during this ”crisis”. Michael Dorsey leads, Billy charms peo-
ple, Casey hurts people, and Rick Martinez translates. The Agency sends them to get Linda out
of Hong Kong but refuses to go. She says he has gotten very close to the one trafficking resources
to Al Quaeda from Hong Kong. She put some marked bills in a payoff for a black market purse
and they were in the Middle East, Jakarta, by the next day.

Casey attacks the roommate and then Linda walks in and says whta are you doing. they
find out she did not post online to HQ because the leak was part of a strategy to get her to
leave. Kwan the mystery importer has been hunted for years. Kwan is a phantom terrrorist who
finances terrorism around the world. Dorset negotiates more time.

Joseph Chang the boyfriend is an asset. He works in the export business. Linda says that
Kwan wants to expand his business and needs to make a face to face. ODS phone the CIA
Deputy Director and informs her of the leaked cables.
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As they leave Linda’s apartment, they are all arrested by the Colonel of the Hong Kong Intelli-
gence Corps. He says they must go to the airport and he will watch the plane leave. On the van
to the airport Dorset realizes Kwan is connected to the leak. They signal a disruptive moment
and jump the squad and escape the van.

Knowing their phones are tapped, they look for other equipment in a toy store which func-
tions as a counterespionage toy shop. Casey says this is his first asset he turned. they code
name the devices ”adult toys”. Dorsey pulls an extra suite of encrypted SIM cards from a secret
compartment in his belt.

The group gets the video cameras and post them from a money smuggler and terror financier.
The man finds three of the cameras but one remains. The team meet with Linda’s contact at the
warehouse meet but there is a tipoff and the smugglers send toughs.

At Kwan’s factory, they are set up. Seeing the video devices that a group of armed men come
in, they turn out the lights and attack them. But upon leaving the car is gone and so is the asset.
Martinez realizes they can get the GPS on the car to tell them where it went. In Virginia, the
Deputy Director and Fay tracks the car to another location. They also see that the one camera
not disabled has a picture of the big boss during the meeting. They find the car and the dead
body of the asset inside. There is a secret elevator key in the corpse’s pocket.

The crew canvas the apartment while Casey and Linda talk over their breakup. This was the
only place the car stopped. In the apartment they hear cars. The Chinese police come to arrest
them again. Dorset and the crew realize not only is he Chinese secret service but that Sato the
Colonel is actually Kwan the terrorist importer. (That’s why the car and corpse were abandoned).

In Langley, the Deputy Director gets heat for letting the ODS run their own show. Fay and
Martinez’ new flame realize that the ODS are doing the real work of the FBI despite the politics
inside the Agency. They realize that the Chinese police did not report arresting the ODS even
though Dorset and company have been arrested twice. Meanwhile the ODS gang find a Chinese
gun and spook resources but are cornered ransacking the apartment and Casey and Linda opt
to get arrested and returned while Dorsey Martinez and Billy rescue them. Casey observes they
are not in a government facility. He points out to Linda the guard whose eye he cracked the night
before is now wearing a uniform guarding them. He realizes that Colonel Kwai and Kwan are the
same person.

While Linda and Casey wait, they discuss their past relationship to Malick’s discomfort. She
says she loved him and Casey is reluctant to confess he left her because she interfered with the
two per cent chance of his making a mistake while being deadly and he couldn’t take the risk.
Pressing their impending death she finally gets him to admit he loved her. Casey says now he is
down by five per cent.

The Colonel puts pressure on Casey to get the team together for the flight home. But Malick
code-words on the phone they need to be rescued, while Michael Dorset likewise doubletalks the
meet to take place with Sato. They get the address and go back to Mr. Lee’s to get more toys.
They bust into the hostage room and close down the operation, freeing the prisoners.

Back in Langley the Deputy Director, Colonel Kai-Wei was found hiding on the ship to Jakarta.
Martinez returns to hear she enjoyed holding his leash. She wants to know as his boss if he would
care to explain the expenses for the Hong Kong trip, $77,000 in adult toys. In the ODS office,
Martinez discovers Linda teasing Casey. She says for a guy like him the missing 2% is love.
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The Mole

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Saturday May 28, 2011
Writer: Tom Spezialy, Bruce Zimmerman
Director: Stephen Cragg, Bryan Spicer
Show Stars: Freddy Rodriguez (Rick Martinez), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Tim

Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), James Murray (Billy Collins), Carmen
Ejogo (Fay Carson), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Kurtwood Smith
(H.J. Higgins)

Guest Stars: Robert Weiss (Operative Adams), Kelly Metzger (Operative Mercer),
Malcolm Stewart (Burt Hecker), Derek Lowe (Operative Reed), Luis
Javier (Thug #1), Jose Vargas (Doctor), Denise Jones (Operative
Burns), Molly Hagan (Ms. Lurkin), Ed Begley Jr. (Operative Corwin),
Walter Perez (Felipe), Matthew Harrison (Higgin’s Aide)

Production Code: 1ASM04
Summary: The CIA offices go on lockdown when the director suspects a mole,

putting a foreign operative in danger. The agents’ must figure out how
to get the operative the support needed for a drug cartel operation
already in play.

During a break in CIA assignments, Mar-
tinez is startled to realize the men in ODS
have a side company where they make
phony passports for drug cartel players
who are Belize immigrants. They jump
a place to Bolivia, taking out uniforms
and making Martinez sign a contract in
Ink tech Industries. The international ink
company services all the unsanctioned
missions. Martinez asks what fire they
are putting out.

The newest order is from a high rank-
ing cartel member. They put microdot
transmitters in the passports as a sting
operation. Martinez bonds with the shop
owner, Felipe. They take the papers and

promise to fly back. Felipe is very nervous the team will not return. He shares that he was a
worker for the cartels as a very young child. Back at CIA, Higgins holds a meeting with one of
his subordinates Corwin (Ed Begley Junior). The security sweep results are not good. Top secret
files are missing and there is turnover and women out on maternity leave. Higgins detects a leak
and the CIA-FBI liaision operative arrives to shutdown the agency. Higgins smells a rat.

The photos allows the CIA men to recognize the cartel men after plastic surgery. When they
go to make the encrypted passports they get a overnight promise. But there is a security breach
during the photo processing. When Billy goes to make the encryption document pickup, the
Director Higgins is there. He says he wants the cartel man they have flagged.

In the Bolivian shop, Felipe gets a phone call from Michael and panics. Cipino’s men are
watching him and at night he comes back and sets his shop on fire. Dorset asks Fay to process
the passports but she can’t release them until Higgins finds his mole. But the whole building is
on lockdown. To examine the files on the mole they have to get into the room. Casey used to live

11



Chaos Episode Guide

with the CIA security liaison and sets Billy upon her in an elevator. He comes onto her as Casey
whisks her security tag out the elevator. But this takes her entire skirt and an embarrassed Billy
gives her his jacket as Casey sneaks the keys away. Martinez’s lady friend confides her father
was Italian Ambassador and the CIA gig is a path to politics.

The crew examine the offices and find Corwin smiling in a beautiful boat picture on the desk
of the virtuous employee. They find he never even got the boat in the water just hated driving
an old car. Billy says a man who brown bags his lunch and drives a beater does not get a yacht
without selling secrets. They prod him to a confession and a startled staff see him do the perp
walk in cuffs down the halway, freeing the lockdown.

Back in Langley, Higgins discovers the cover operation and views it as a side business. He
says that unlike Corwin he has his eye on all of them. He demands that Ink Technologies go
under. But amid lie detection tests and interrogation of Corwin, they finally get back to Bolivia
with the passports. The hidden video shows Felipe torched the place himself. But now he says if
they see the burned place they will kill him.

Martinez offers to deliver the passports himself, but at the meet the man smells something
is wrong. Martinez’s attitude tips him off. He says is a NorteAmericano and he is putting his
nephew out of business because he is stupid enough to do business with the cartels. Martinez is
shot, and the men get him to the car.

Dorset gives Martinez a huge amount of morphine candy. He’s so high Dorset is distracted
and crashes into a tree. With the wrecked car Casey refuses to sew Martinez up. Then Dorset
has to run to the clinic 15 miles to get a doctor. He runs all night past silent llamas.

Billy tells Martinez a story about being young and driving his uncle’s rover from Aberdeen to
Lochiemeath. He hit a cow and slept until morning. But at four in the morning he woke up and
felt the car rocking. There was a pack of wild dogs tearing the cow to pieces under the vehicle.
Then Casey sings a ridiculous country song about prison and pistols for dinner. Back in Langley,
Martinez gets a plaque and is asked by his lady friend to follow her in his car home. Martinez is
really shocked at how his recent experience compares to Corwin’s.

Although it seems like flirtation, a black car waits nearby.
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Eaten by Wolves

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Saturday June 4, 2011
Writer: Katie Ford
Director: Bryan Spicer
Show Stars: Kurtwood Smith (H.J. Higgins), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Carmen

Ejogo (Fay Carson), Tim Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), James Mur-
ray (Billy Collins), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Freddy Rodriguez (Rick
Martinez)

Guest Stars: Bruce Ramsay (Jean Pierre), Dmitry Chepovetsky (Albert), Boris Kru-
tonog (Sokolov), Yaroslav Poverlo (Viktor), Winter Ave Zoli (Irina), Sasha
Piltsin (Alec), Hiro Kanagawa (Operative Flowers), Alessandro Juliani
(Aide), Klara Rybicka (Brunette), Roman Podhora (Romance Tour Op-
erator), Alexander Mandra (GRU Officer), John Livingston (Operative
Lloyd)

Production Code: 1ASM02
Summary: The agents head to Russia pretending to be tourists looking for brides,

but are really trying to find a scientist selling nuclear secrets. When
Rick becomes entangled with one of the women, his cover story starts
to unravel.

The CHAOS teams goes to Russia, (in a
nod to the best loved movie by one of the
co-stars in Russia). Their washed-out un-
derground informant hands them some
intelligence that a top scientist is ped-
dling nuclear material to the highest bid-
der. Michael goes to fay’s office and drops
off their mail. He lives in the house they
owned and he sweet talks Fay into ap-
proving the mission, and clearly both Fay
and Michael (on some level) hope to per-
haps repair their marriage even though
they are divorced.

Fay is dubious about the intel and
says Higgins will never approve it. But

Fay trusts Michael’s instincts and get the Deputy Director to approve the mission on the grounds
is is a fertilizer toxic waste threat the ODS is investigating. Higgins is busy lobbying with fat cats.

Before the trip, Billy cautions Martinez about the dangers working in Russia and show him
the wall of stars where unnamed foreign agents have been captured behind enemy lines. Casey
checks over Martinez knowing his cover story.

In Volgograd, Billy is the pride of Scotland attending the convention publicizing Scottish wind
farming and the best golf on the planet. Michael and Billy see everyone from the spy world in the
lobby. They sense competition and corner Victor and get him to consider a $250,000 offer for the
tangible asset (uranium) he is rumored to hold. Billy and Michael easily close negotiations at the
bar with Victor.

Casey and Rick Martinez attend a conference shopping for Russian brides. Martinez’ cover
story as born and from Kansas City falls flat against the most basic questions. Martinez is a
hit with a beautiful girl but is not comfortable acting like a wife shopper. Martinez is even more
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uncomfortable when one of the women, Rena, a knockout blonde, sets her sights on him as a
husband.

Billy and Michael recognise a French agent who says he already has the materials purchased
and they are being gift wrapped. They follow Jean-Pierre up to the sixth floor of the hotel where
they see him going into Victor’s room and nabbed by thugs. They estimate these are Russian
intelligence. The news was leaked as spytrap and they walked right into it. The GRU agents beat
up Jean-Pierre.

Higgins, in Langley, bawls out the Deputy Director while arranging for an agent to get the
ODS out of Volgograd. A long placed CIA agent planted in Russia must be sacrificed to get them
out. Then the Deputy Director tells Fay that she needs to worry about Higgins. The possibility
of the ODS not getting out of Russia is tangible. In Russia, the car to pick up the ODS arrives
but Martinez and Casey get into a scuffle when Rena’s old boyfriend shows up in the hotel bar
and picks a fight. Billy and Michael can’t get in the spy car without them. Martinez stands up for
Rena, and tries to fight back but Casey interjects his own brand of hellfire and the hotel police
take them both away.

In the jail, the Russian cop questions the cover story Martinez clumsily committed to memory.
He is asked to call his place of work in Kansas City. The number that answers is Pizza Barn.
The Russian says this is a pizza restaurant in Boise, Idaho. Casey is released but they detain
Martinez. The police question him further, whereupon Martinez says he is on unemployment but
lied to get on the tour so the women wouldn’t think he was a loser.

Michael and Billy find about about Rick’s problems from Casey and say that the CIA must
consider a trade to get him out. They hear Casey say he has it covered. Back in Langley, Higgins
conducts a damage report. Fay says they have the Chechnean field director for a trade. Higgins
says they must walk away from the trade and let Rick be disavowed. He tells his subordinate
to rain money on Russian Customs to get Michael, Billy, and Casey out but Martinez will be
disavowed. Higgins points out that the mission was misrepresented.

Back in Russia, Casey goes back to the bride hotel and says to the Russian bride tour director
his stomach hurts. He insists the tour man will get Martinez out of jail or he will rip him in half.
Casey also threatens to tell all the men that the women are hiding husbands and children (until
they are in America) from the men on the tour. The tour director shrugs. Then says OK.

Casey then brings the tour manager and the girl Rena who says she is the bride. The tour
manager says how can he run a business with clients in jail. Rena answers questions from the
police saying she will be his chosen bride. Rick realizes as they walk out he now has a wife.

Michael has strong feelings about loose nuclear material and Billy points out that Fay’s job is
on the line. If they don’t go back to Higgins with the uranium she might lose her job. Casey and
Rick board the bus headed for the airport with Michael and Billy’s passports in the stack to be
rubber stamped by the customs officials. But they aren’t on the bus.

Michael and Billy go to the hotel room of Victor, to the uranium sting to get the nukes from
hitting the market. While they view the material and arrange the payoff, Billy tells Michael he
has something stuck in his teeth.

Michael goes to the mirror and checks his teeth and sticks a tiny mine explosive on the
two way mirror. It blows and Michael and Billy take apart the Russian GRU operatives on the
other side of the crashed mirror. When they turn around the Russian physicist and the nuclear
material is gone.

Martinez debates on wthetehr or not to leave the bus. Casey stays behind to make sure it
doesn’t leave without them.

Rick comes up into the building bck stairs to make sure Billy and Michael are all right and
intercepts the fleeing scientist. Rick knocks Victor over the stairwell and obtains the uranium.

Michael and Billy come down the stairs to discover his work. When Michael and Billy get to
the bus the tour director twists their arms to accept two brides and hand them visa packages
for them both. Michael and Billy are surly about this and then get on board with the women,
tucking the uranium under the seat. Back in Langley, CIA Director Higgins calls Fay into his
office. He says firing her would be like cutting off his right arm so he says he’ll make her cut off
her right arm. He says she has a blind spot although she does good work, and she must get rid
of the blind spot.

When Michael comes home from the trip he sees a ”For Sale” sign on the lawn of their house.
At the office he comes to see her and ask why and she tells him the house is for sale. She tells his

14



Chaos Episode Guide

about how she almost lost her job and that her judgement is damaged where he is concerned.
Michael realizes she is serious and agrees. (he doesn’t mention he risked his life to save her job).

Later, the ODS find Martinez looking at the wall of stars. He could have been one of them.
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Remote Control

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Saturday June 11, 2011
Writer: Katie Ford, Vivian Lee
Director: Fred Gerber
Show Stars: Freddy Rodriguez (Rick Martinez), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Tim

Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), James Murray (Billy Collins), Carmen
Ejogo (Fay Carson), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Kurtwood Smith
(H.J. Higgins)

Guest Stars: Carlos Leal (Luc Mounia), Steve Hytner (Barry), Tony Ali (Hassan
Ohana), Pierre Wolff (French Intelligence Officer), Rick Overton (Op-
erative Blanke), Matthew Harrison (Higgin’s Aide), Patrick Bauchau
(Renard)

Production Code: 1ASM05
Summary: When the CIA learns that a terrorist is hiding in Paris, the CHAOS

spies are sent in to capture him. But when French intelligence agents
shut their operation down, they must continue the mission while
avoiding an international incident.

Martinez catches the Deputy Director
changing her clothes in the parking
garage, but gets turned down asking for
a date.

Then Rick is sucked into a meeting de-
ciphering a French telephone call. Billy
poisoned the burrito of the Higgins ap-
pointed translator. Casey wants Paris,
good food and deep bathtubs. They smell
a French mission.

Higgins decides on the ODS. Hassan
Ohanoh is the Hezbollah mass murderer
he wants.

Michael books the hotel at his hon-
eymoon with Fay but he can’t remember

what her favorite perfume is. The ODS head to Paris after Michael sets Blank on a mission while
they are gone. He wants to get Fay her scent in Paris. He says he can use their bullpen if Blank
can cruise Fay and detect it.

Michael Billy and Casey go to a gourmet dinner in Paris while Martinez scans radio waves.
The suite gets busted while Casey and Billy are irritated that Michael keeps referring to his now-
idealized honeymoon. At the hotel Martinez forwards a signal to Langley using Paris based CIA
cell towers. The French intelligence captain Luc cuts them off from spying and confiscates their
equipment.

Michael learns from Fay that the signal was a hit on Hassan. Langley says the French have
filed a formal complaint with Higgins.

Then Higgins sends Fay to Paris to mollify the French and switch Rick’s phone. Higgins indi-
cates all her skills should be employed in this mission.

The ODS find cocktail Barry and reveal he is as blown in his cover as they are.
After seeing the bug they get Barry to crash his car directly into Luc’s and they bust the

apartment in model of a Franco-American cooperation. The ODS kill a Muslim man, dead with
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his own bullet ricochet, leaving them without a brief and abroad with a body. Luc is furious
they smashed his wife’s car and his underpaid lifestyle won’t spring for a new one. Michael
commiserates with his own carpool woes.

The chief and French authorities think is the man Hassan, but the team work out that he is
the advance man and Hassan is eluding them. Rick identifies the bleach in the apartment but
then the French shut the op down. The ODS convince Luc the man shot to hide something.

Meanwhile Rick has dinner with the Deputy Director, who cuts to the chase and flirts a
proposition out of Rick. She demands his cellphone and then clumsily exchanges that with the
Higgins version.

Later the team and Luc converge at the apartment.
The ODS find a boatload of fake passports in an out-of-tune guitar, which the dead man was

guarding. This opens the floodgate on tracking Hassan for real. The Hezbollah reveals Hassan’s
portrait.

Higgins rubs his hands with glee at nabbing the terrorists but is floored when the French
Minister suggests they use the CIA cell towers in France, since the French ones are down.

Higgins is thus embarrassed and forced to disclose. His tactical and political victories are
gone.

The ODS trace the Hezbollah team to their industrial hideout. But the EMT is a archetype of
French technology.

The French retreat because panicked civilians crowd the op. Rick chases Hassan up and out
a window, plummeting three stories into a dirt pit with iron plumbing exposed.

Billy, Michael and Casey spot Hassan from the work visa pictures and Billy tackles him,
nabbing him for the French. Luc becomes friendly, redeeming the mission.

Back in Langley, Higgins confirms the Martinez phone tap.
The ODS strip off all re-imported personal items. They suspect Luc bugged them. They find

Rick’s phone is bugged and splosh it in some coffee. Michael presents Fay with her favorite
perfume. He had a lab analyze her honeymoon dress from storage to identify the brand.

In the coffee room, Deputy Director blows off an amorous Rick. Then she learns he drowned
his phone, endangering her job with Higgins. Blank later sees them getting busy in the car in the
garage, setting off all the buzzers.
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Core Fortitude

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Saturday June 18, 2011
Writer: Tom Spezialy
Director: David Straiton
Show Stars: Kurtwood Smith (H.J. Higgins), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Carmen

Ejogo (Fay Carson), James Murray (Billy Collins), Tim Blake Nelson
(Casey Malick), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Freddy Rodriguez (Rick
Martinez)

Recurring Role: Rick Overton (Operative Alan Blanke), Matthew Harrison (Higgin’s
Aide)

Guest Stars: Simon Longmore (CIA Security Guard), Robert Foxworth (Bernard
LaRouche), J. Douglas Stewart (J.O. Mullins), James Michael Connor
(Donald Combs), Bill Duke (General Margolis), Ellie Harvie (Lawyer),
Peter Hanlon (Card Player)

Production Code: 1ASM01
Summary: When Rick’s new team goes against orders to apprehend an arms

dealer, Rick must decide if he can trust them or if he should report
their unauthorized activities to the CIA director.

LaRouche, an arms dealer whose tanker
in Somalia is full of illegal weapons and
lies adrift. Dead Americans innocent of
espionage were killed in a Somali camp
by stolen weapons. Fay urges Higgins, to
send a team to find out who is selling
weapons to Al-Shebab. Higgins is loathe
to send the only qualified agents, the
ODS.

But first the discovery that Higgins is
displeased with Rick’s inability to spy on
the ODS is broached. The ODS become
suspicious of Rick when he alone is called
into a meeting with Higgins with no ac-
companying explanation or cover.

Rick Martinez here first meets Deputy Director Ferrar, as a cute blonde who sees him bring
personal items into the building. She notices his baseball nickname and personal items.

Rick arranges his desk items. The group groans at this, saying personal items expose him
to compromise. Then Martinez is called on by Higgins. He says Martinez’ allegiance is to his
partners, but his door is always open if the ODS steers towards lawlessness. He then says with
Rick on board he’ll give the Somali tanker assignment to the ODS because Rick is watching them.

On the tanker, the place is deserted. The ODS scan the boat. Rick is sent on into the cargo
hold. He finds abandoned food and then turns to find a tank staring him in the face, locked and
loaded. Rock stares with a pointed gun into the barrel of a tank gun, and Billy says ’I don’t like
his odds’. This is the crew, and Rick then finds the manifest.

They look over the boat cargo. Michael explains to Martinez the bright colored butterfly mines
are engineered to kill children. Michael takes a picture of the mines.

On the bridge, Casey scans the bills of lading. Malaysia is not the real destination of the mines.
Billy mocks Rick’s militant field attire. The crew missed their port of call by two full oceans. They
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determine that a known arms dealer Bernard LaRouche owns the cargo. The ODS knows about
LaRouche.

Casey get kicked offline by the Agency computers and Billy suggests they Google LaRouche.
The crew of the tanker say they thought the ODS were pirates and hid out. A website shows
LaRouche in on the east Coast for a yacht race. Without a conviction LaRouche is free to do
business. Billy puts a picture of Rock against the tank on the office bulletin board.

In Langley, the men are satisfied that domestic authorities will capture LaRouche. But they
find out that LaRouche is getting around the red tape and is still in business. Casey points out
LaRouche must have skeletons in the closet somewhere. Fay says the departments can’t get him
on anything.

At Langley, Rick suggests that Silva is the key. Martinez points out that LaRouche’s middle
name is his Argentinean surname. This might yield the fodder for arrest they need to block the
porting and sale of the weapons.

While the men are researching LaRouche online, Rick has to report for ’Core Fortitude’ train-
ing. Rock sees the cute blonde again who refused to give her name before. She refuses again and
a flummoxed Rick sits down to a dull training class. She calls a terse torture survivor (Coombs)
on his battle with the bottle as he attempts to talk down to the group. He says his knees were
broken at the hands of Kurdish rebels.

The ODS find that Bernard LaRouche Silva is wanted by Interpol and was convicted in absen-
tia. Bernard LaRouche is the weapons dealer of record for the tanker.

Dorset and the ODS tell Fay that they will do a field run to assist nabbing LaRouche since the
the DoJ is suited to white collar crime. They tell her not to mention it.

At the yacht club, Dorset finds Blank parked in a caddy. He gets word from Blank that La
Rouche is inside. Billy and Casey flank him inside where LaRouche sits playing cards. Dorset
walks up to LaRouche’s table and sits down, spouting righteously. LaRouche arrogantly talks
Dorset down, saying that arms trade is profitable and he’ll never be charged.

Then Michael places a red butterfly mine on the table. Billy and Casey gaze admiringly, know-
ing that somehow Dorset smuggled this onboard the plane home from the tanker. LaRouche is
caught between anger and fear while trying to pretend he doesn’t know what it is.

LaRouche is instantly disturbed as a colleague innocently tries to touch it. This is the land
mine with the nitric acid finish that blows children to death used by the Russians. The Asian
guards of LaRouche jump Casey and kick him to the floor, as Billy watches in shock. But then
the Justice officials arrive, and they are there to arrest not the arms dealer but Dorset. The ODS
crew, stunned, are led away.

Dorset is angry. Higgins is furious that LaRouche is not being charged. Even Higgins can’t
believe how protected LaRouche is.

Casey is upset that LaRouche’s Ghurka guards get the best of him at the yacht club. Billy
suggests he was fighting way out of the weight class. LaRouche is untouchable because someone
on the Hill is protecting him. Dorset insists that the Attorney General be notified but Higgins
says to drop it. The ODS are astonished that LaRouche is allowed to gather his tanker and port
it in the USA for repairs (and eventual distribution of the munitions).

The ODS hide out in a Boston hotel near LaRouche’s yacht and call Martinez to gather a
red envelope from the (unlocked) office safe and bring it to them. This is critical. But Rick has
mandatory Core Fortitude training. Casey, frustrated, suggests he shoot his way out and get on
a plane from Reagan by 5 o’clock.

Deputy Director Adele Ferrar lets Rick Martinez off from training. She notices his lie about his
father’s accident because his father is dead. (She noticed his memoriam in the box of personal
belongings Rick brought to the office). She makes a point of not buying Rick’s story, but says the
lie was well-crafted, and says that LaRouche should suffer for his crimes. An amazed Rick exits
her office and meets the ODS crew in Boston.

Higgins tries hard to arm twist a bigwig on the Hill, a general, about LaRouche, but gets
nowhere. This and other politicians acknowledge the problem but says their hands are tied by
more powerful ties than they can unravel. Higgins unhappily eyes the satellite feed of the arms
tanker moving from Somalia to the United States East Coast.

Rick arrives to the ODS crew hotel hideout in Boston, where the ODS have been anxiously
awaiting his arrival. The red envelope is a mission statement from the founder of the ODS. ’We
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must be prepared to enter the shadows and accomplish what is need but is not permitted. ’They
ask Rick to interpret, and he says this means they have to do what needs to be done.

A knock on the door makes the ODS think Rick betrayed them. But it’s just the pizza Blank
ordered. This mission statement allows Rick to morally sanction the capture of LaRoache. Then
they tell Rick he has to get him because they are recognizable from the yacht club. Billy picks up
a shotgun at Wal-mart because Casey’s defenses are unusually weak.

The teacher of the Core Fortitude class reports to Higgins that Martinez left off the training.
The travel department tracks a flight to Boston Rick took. Coombs says that he is the eyes and
ears of Higgins. (This points up the intel weakness Ferrar pointed out that got him arrested by the
Kurds). Higgins says Martinez has drunk the Kool Aid. But he pauses in sending backup people
to clean up the ODS from acting. (Higgins doesn’t like the strings that are keeping LaRoache
protected).

Martinez poses in a the men’s room of the yacht club, in a tuxedo as an attendant. Michael
gives Rick a syringe with painkiller and hallucinogenic which will immobilize him. Martinez is
disgusted at the cheap tipping habits of these wealthy yachtsmen (Blank has provided candy for
the candy dish). When LaRoache comes in, Rick is nervous and pulls the syringe obviously.

Billy has given Rick a pep talk on the uses of fear in hand to hand combat. La Roache sees
the needle and jumps into stall, locking the door. Rick slips into the stall next to where LaRoache
flees, brutally hopping over the wall and attacking the arms dealer. They struggle all over the
bathroom, and Rick then slams LaRoache into a mirror and then he drops on the floor, stunned.
Rick jabs him with the needle.

As the security Ghurkas come running at LaRoaches’ delay in the bathroom, they hear Blank
loudly stuffing a protesting man into the trunk of a car outside. They attack the car and then
find Casey, smiling, in the trunk. Billy pulls the shotgun on them and then Casey chops the head
guy down to size, with Billy’s smiling approval.

Elsewhere, Michael powers a yacht out to open sea. LaRoache snarls at Martinez that his
lawyers will kill them. He says his lawyers frightened big tobacco and they will get him out of
this. But Michael says they are headed for Argentinean waters where Interpol waits for him and
this is his last boat ride for a while. Rick moves the hurl bucket over to ’Silva’, who turns green
at the news.

Back in Langley, Rick thanks Adele Ferrar but she warns him about Higgins and says he
might regret helping him. Later in the ODS office, Rick Martinez realizes the ODS suspected him
of spying. There is a quiet moment. But Billy proclaims his poem encomium to Martinez’ loyalty
and Casey’s bravery. Casey doesn’t hate it. Billy gleefully posts it on the bulletin board.

Higgins calls Ferrar into his office, supposedly to grill her on helping Martinez. He smiles and
takes a call from the general about a round of drinks. Higgins is so loved on the Hill now due
to the ODS he can’t bust them on the mission, because the screws LaRoache was turning are
finally over. Adele says Rick is already sweet on her, and Higgins grins, as his plan to subvert
Rick goes to the next level.
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Defending Sofia

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Saturday June 25, 2011
Writer: Bruce Zimmerman, Chris Black
Director: Fred Gerber
Show Stars: Freddy Rodriguez (Rick Martinez), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Tim

Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), James Murray (Billy Collins), Carmen
Ejogo (Fay Carson), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Kurtwood Smith
(H.J. Higgins)

Recurring Role: Matthew Harrison (Higgin’s Aide)
Guest Stars: Tina Milo Milivojevic (Election Worker), Vanessa Evancic (Girl at Road-

block), Raphael Kepinski (Jovan), James Tyce (Soldier #1), Tony Ali
(Hassan), Cynthia Stevenson (Violet Green), Martin Novotny (Morgue
Clerk), Branka Katic (Sophia Vukola), Isiah Whitlock Jr. (Warren
Smith), Rob Hayter (Fed#1 / Assassin), Gregg Henry (Kurt Niemeyer),
Noel Johansen (Sam Crowley), Tim Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), Bruce
Ramsay (Jean Pierre)

Production Code: 1ASM07
Summary: When a U.S. ally is assassinated on the eve of her country’s presiden-

tial election, the ODS travel abroad only to discover that her death was
staged. They vow to keep her safe from her own government so she can
participate in the election.

Rick Martinez is staging a war with the
coffee machine. The ODS is made aware
by Fay of a bombing of a foreign Presi-
dent elect on the eve of her election by
opposing government forces. Fay speaks
of how she has idealized ’Sophia’ after
having met her at an Embassy reception
years ago. The bombing was very public.
The men are stunned but not sure what
their mission is.

Higgins tells the ODS to go into the
country to retrieve a device they planted
on of the dead woman’s crew. The com-

munications coordinator was working for the CIA and he died with an encrypted phone. They
can’t have the CIA implicated. Their cover is that they are international representatives of democ-
racy there to monitor the elections. Sophia Bukla of Zagravia is supposedly dead. but President
Koslovich must hold free elections anyway.

Michael, Billy, Casey, and Rick travel to the country, where they are trained by a hung-ho new
age liberal how to observe elections. They are issued a radio. The idealist says the polling place
is a cathedral of liberty, a church of democracy.he wants to rock the vote. meanwhile Michael
briefs the team on how they must get the personal effects of the dead people. Rick is upset that
he not judged ’smooth’ enough to front the ODS move yet.

They make their way to where the corpses of the dead woman is being kept to get the cell-
phone. They get access to the bodies by pretending incriminating pictures of Billy are on the
missing cellphone. The clerk wants $500 U.S. Supposedly Billy’s wife shouldn’t see the pictures.
Billy is grumpy because he thinks he could have done better.

23



Chaos Episode Guide

But as they try to rummage through the personal effects, a crew of toughs come through and
remove a body. Casey (who is not supposed to be there) meets the eyes of the clerk before he is
shot. The morgue gets creepy fast. Casey warns them and they hunker down. The innocent clerk
is killed. Michael suspects that the woman killed wasn’t Sophia because the Koslovich toughs
want to make sure as well.

In Langley, the team of Fay and Deputy Director Ferrar agree that the dead woman was a
body double. Sophia was known to use decoys because the country was so dangerous. Higgins
doesn’t buy it until a profiling expert foes the rundown on Sophia’s lipstick and handbag not
matcive pause. hing the personal effects. Higgins sends a list of names of Sophia’s contacts to
investigate.

Ladybug Red and Ruby Slipper are lipstick colors. The contact solutions is wrong and the gum
is what Sophia never uses. Higgins snarls this is not enough to bring to the D. C. I. for action,
and then she hands him a personal file on the big cheese with his personal feminine brand
of deodorant ’Lady Sport Stick’. She says he can twist the man’s arm with this information. A
pleased Higgins takes the file.

In Zagrevia, Michael contacts a known associate of Sophia’s. Ketzmann is packing his car and
his two children to flee. They admit to being CIA and insist she is alive. They say they can get
her out of the country. Ketzmann takes a fatalistic view of what will happen to Sophia. Michael
argues the man into telling them where Sophia is.

At the safe house, a rough group of men play dice and checkers with loaded weapons at the
ready. Michael coaches the team while Casey brings each of them a bouquet of flowers to make
the psychological impact go easier. the men rush the room and get shot at. then they yell they
are there to help Sophia escape. Then Sophia’s voice calls them out.

Michael estimates that in one hour the opposition will detect the ruse of the double. Michael
says that the Embassy is a tough travel because the place is on lockdown. Higgins say even
dead Sophia will win the election in a landslide.But Sophia says that the CIA is a fair weathered
friend. Casey pretends he is jealous of the backwater country and its human rights abuses, and
Sophia calls Casey on his cultural arrogance and corporate imperialism. Michael points out the
opposition have tanks and people will die unless she gets away.

But on the way to the Embassy they see too many troops and a tank. All cellphone contact
is broken. Michael calls the election supervisor who is annoyed the entire team is missing. Then
Sophia says that she must vote in the election in her home district or she can’t be elected
president. Sophia tells her loyal gang that she is going with the ODS because their incompetence
will get them killed unless she goes with them.

Michael tells Warren they will stop by and finish up the polling van. Warren tells the to get
there butts in gear and that the whole world is watching what they do there today. Michael gets
an idea to take a video of Sophia and stream it worldwide. Michael tells Higgins all eyes will be
directed to Rachovia. Michael says it will be harder for the government to kill Sophia or deny her
winning the election if she is shown to b alive. Michael takes a Youtube and broadcast it via his
phone to Higgins who streams it live.

Her zeal is touching but Michael realizes that now the opposition knows where to hurt them.
The encrypted phone then dies out. Higgins wants the team to head with Sophia to the border.
Sophia chats about history and Boston. She went to the Kennedy School. But then they have
to get her to the polling station. They find one but opposition tough guys are their. Posing as
monitoring official also, they chase Rick and Billy. Then Billy grabs a fire extinguisher and knocks
them senseless.

Running from the city they cast about for ideas. They find Warren. He is angry with the ODS
team for shirking their voting responsibilities but then is dumfounded to see Sophia alive. Warren
says that the ODS can;t have contact with the candidate. They then reveal they are CIA. Ferra
calls Dorsey with his extraction instructions. Higgins s enraged at the detour. They have to stay
on the move.

They get followed by opposition tough guys and then have to go on the run in an elections van.
Sophia insist she votes according to the constitution or she can’t be president. Michael doesn’t
want to do it but then Higgins concurs. Then Sophia grabs the cellphone and sweet talks Higgins.
At a roadside patrol, they hide Sophia inside a ski cap but a little girl sees her. Sophia shakes
her head but the girl in a car sees her and yells her name.

The men with machine guns start chasing them but they escape in the polling van. Warren
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is aghast when the ODS pushes the safe with the polling ballots out into the road to stop the
pursuing henchmen. Eventually they get Sophia to the outskirts of her district and Warren over-
sees her legal vote. The ODS enjoy being the good guys and tell Warren he has the right stuff. he
turns down a shot at the ODS to pursue world freedom and democracy.

Back in Langley, Fay watches as Sophia becomes President of Zagravia.
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Glory Days

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Saturday June 25, 2011
Writer: Tara Butters, Michelle Fazekas
Director: Sarah Pia Anderson
Show Stars: Freddy Rodriguez (Rick Martinez), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Tim

Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), James Murray (Billy Collins), Carmen
Ejogo (Fay Carson), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Kurtwood Smith
(H.J. Higgins)

Recurring Role: Matthew Harrison (Higgin’s Aide)
Guest Stars: Lesley Ewen (Older Woman), Gregg Henry (Kurt Neimeyer), Michael

Badalucco (Fred Farmer), Rob Hayter (Fed #1/Assassin), Bruce
Boxleitner (Ray Bishop), Noel Johansen (Sam Crowley)

Production Code: 1ASM09
Summary: When the CIA uncovers a private security contractor’s attempts to

place moles in US embassies, they turn to a legendary former agent to
aid in the investigation, not knowing if he still has the skills to succeed
in the spy game.

Rick is spotted at work in a false good
Monday morning to deputy directory Fer-
rar. Billy and Casey remark hat they are
secretly dating. Martinez stops short in
shock that they’ve been detected. Cof-
fee cups and imminent arrivals. They de-
scribe all the ways they can tell they are
dating to a flummoxed Rick. Casey says
he put a bug in Rick’s apartment but Billy
says he is probably only kidding. Proba-
bly.

Dorsey reports to Higgins that a
credible asset spotted a Russian Croa-
tian plant in an American Embassy.
He has the Social Security of a dead
man. He’s been in the embassy for eight
months.They go to the Embassy in Za-

ghreb and have a meeting with the undercover guy, who runs out the door the minute their
fake chat ends. They talk about the Super Bowl and the man says in a fake American accent ’Go
Packers!’.

The guy is met in his car by a suspicious operative. They chat while Casey translates the
Russian. The planted agent wants to be pulled out. Then they hear a shot and the suspicious
man exits the vehicle. The plant agent has been assassinated. Casey chases him on foot. Jumping
over a fence, the man pushes Casey into an electrical box. Stunned, Casey falls to the ground
and takes in to many volts and later starts spouting Russian gibberish.

Crowley was killed by his Russian contact and Dorsey and the ODS team work with Fred
from tactical services, who find a digital copying machine device. The sophistication is beyond
the technician’s level of expertise. He says only the private sector can produce that kind of
hardware. The private security market is ludicrously lucrative.

Back at the CIA, Higgins cites several other State Department embassy personnel similarly
terminated from American embassies. This means the network is much larger. Higgins wants
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Dorsey’s information source. Higgins say trust is a rare and precious commodity in their line
of work. Higgins demands Michael Dorsey’s source. Dorsey is unwilling to say who it is. This is
because Higgins ain’t gonna like it. The field asset intel is at the base of the question.

Ray Bishop is the founding father of the ODS (played by Bruce Boxleitner). He comes into the
CIA office and mocks Higgins. He meets Deputy Director Ferrar. (She declines to give him her
first name or flirt). Dorsey introduces him to Rick Martinez. Bishop knows what is up and wants
money for his data. Bishop wants a contract. Higgins says he is putting a price on his patriotism.

Higgins wants to know how he found out the mole device. Bishop demands a consultant
paycheck. Higgins calls Bishop’s contacts burnt out ex spooks. He calls Higgins a petty herbal-
tea-drinking bean counter. Higgins orders Dorsey to infiltrate Bishop’s home and find classified
material. Or the next call he’ll make will be to the FBI and if he has classified material he’ll be
jailed.

Ray Bishop brags about what he can do with a computer and an Internet connection. Bishop
says that Higgins sits behind a desk and sips herbal tea. Higgins has a thirty year grudge against
Bishop. Higgins orders Bishop’s home shop tossed.

Crowley tells Fay that the device on the copier is beyond what the CIA budget can afford.
Crawley says private intelligence built the device. It has more memory, digital technology and a
Lithium power battery pack.

Bishop recruited Michael into the ODS. Bishop thinks he is in line for some money for his
information. Dorsey points out he is past it. Bishop compares himself to Muhammad Ali making
a comeback and he has leverage. Dorsey points out Ali lost. He wants back in the spy game. But
Rick says espionage intelligence makes him an enemy of the state. Bishop tells Martinez that
aging spies don’t have much of a retirement plan.

Billy and Casey check Bishop’s place and find two men pretending to be from the FBI. They
find a lot of CIA museum-quality assets. Casey whips a handkerchief off one of them asking why
the FBI cares about leaving fingerprints. The men attack and fight but Casey gets tasered. The
other man watches Casey take shock after shock and keep moving. Casey gets lit up too many
times and wakes up speaking Russian gibberish again. Casey confesses to taking volts every
morning to reduce his vulnerability to tasers.

Dorsey calls Bishop a civilian. Bishop is wide-eyed to realize that the ODS is searching his
home for data. Dorsey knows he is not sharper than ever.

At Bishop’s searched home, Dorsey asks about what Bishop has been up to earn this kind of
attention. Global Intel, a large private security firm, is a past client of Ray Bishop’s. Dorsey is as-
tonished that for three years Bishop enjoyed illegal access to this international firms operations.
The really impressive computer mainframe allowed him some hack access. Bishop’s access was
traced and they found out about their guy in Croatia. Dorsey demands he turn over his files.

The fake Feds were there because they think Bishop was on to their bigger stuff. They planted
a virus on the Ray Bishop computer. Bishop says he accessed the database from Global for years.
Casey keeps spouting Russian. They probe taking him to a hospital. Billy says that maybe Casey
sparked the computer himself. Casey continues to make uncontrolled Russian remarks.

Deputy Director Ferrar shows Rick the CIA director Higgin’s personnel file. Evidently Higgins
was in the ODS originally and got kicked out by Bishop back in the day. Maybe Hudson J.
Higgins can’t get over it, according to Ferrar. This explains his allergy to all things ODS. Rick
learns that Ferrar keeps a grudge and has the file of a girl who stole her Strawberry Shortcake
doll when she was a child. Rick processes this.

Fay gives them the breakdown on Global Intel. Billions of dollars of contracts They are a
private sector security company using Iranian secret police, Saudi intelligence, and more founded
by corrupt NSA alumni Kurt Niemeyer. The DOJ is investigating the Global Intel company and it
is suspected of anti American intel trading, acting against USA interests, and assassination jobs,
and placing the asset in the very global American embassy.

The new global Intel franchise is agency infiltration. More deaths are reported, Dorsey says
they are using their assets to clean up the network Higgins detected. Ray suggests a bluff to suss
out the Global Intel people.

Bishop is dying to get back in the spy game and says he can sit down with Niemeyer and say
he has a backup of the data on a different hard drive. Dorsey flips out and say it won’t work.
Higgins steps into the meeting and amazes them all by approving the mission, saying Bishop
knows the risks. He tells Bishop to wear a wire and ’try not to die’. They wire up Bishop.
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Bishop meets Niemeyer at a restaurant. Niemeyer has pre-ordered Bishop the lobster bisque.
The dinner is being recorded by the ODS team in the van in the garage. Niemeyer coyly evades
the gung-ho Bishop’s purpose to get him to admit guilt. When Bishop ducks out to the park-
ing garage, he says everything is going great. The ODS exchange glances, they don’t have the
admission of guilt they need. Ray collapses, claiming poison.

Dorsey greets him upon waking, saying the doctors say it was an angina attack. They are in
the hospital. He has to avoid risk and excitement. Bishop says he wants to continue, because
despite his own corruption and aging, he knows Michael is the real deal, the best there is and
that is why he feels safe. Bishop looks back at all the operations he did which were enormously
risky and says he isn’t afraid.

At the CIA, Higgins tells Ferrar they are leaving Bishop in the hospital as bait. Ferrar points
out that as bait Bishop is at risk because Global Intel had resources that exceed their own. She
refers to the past between Higgins and Ray Bishop. Higgins says he has no revenge fantasy but
Ferrar points out that for CYA reasons extra precautions are needed. Higgins says he’ll see to it.

As Dorsey preps Bishop for his extended hospital stay with a target painted on his back,
Higgins steps into the room with a black duffel bag. Both Dorsey and Bishop are amazed to see
that Higgins will be there to oversee the sting.

Higgins announces his in depth participation. He says to make sure the Global Intel organiza-
tion pounces, he let some disinformation slip that Bishop is testifying against Niemeyer. Dorsey
says this guarantees an attempt on Bishop’s life. Bishopsays ’Way to put the mission first’. In
the car listening to the wire, Martinez can’t get the ODS to talk about the Higgins incident in the
past.

Higgins is in a hospital bed and gown arguing with Bishop about how many missions are
taking backseat to Ray’s setup, 32 in Pakistan alone. Higgins noises off about the bad history
between them. Higgins says many lives are at stake, but if Bishop can’t be grateful he should
shut up. Bishop confesses that firing Higgins was the best thing he ever did because he is so
competent at managing the CIA. Bishop says he is an aging drunk ex-spook, and Bishop says
they both got what they wanted.

Billy confesses to Martinez, watching the hospital hallway downstairs, that blood makes him
squeamish. They see a likely Russian operative and follow him. The real operative poses on a
gurney as a bloody patient and runs through the hospital. Billy moans at the sight of the blood
and looks away. Martinez follows the other man but then radio from Casey alerts them about the
real threat. The man runs from Casey and escapes.

Higgins hears the radio chatter and jumps out of the hospital bed cracking a gun, and Bishop
squints when he realizes Higgins is so into the undercover role he isn’t wearing any underwear.
Casey then radios the man is fleeing the building Rick and Billy chase the man who steals a
car from a civilian. As Billy executes a dangerous high speed chase, he elocutes an educational
lecture on race pursuit driving for Rick.

Martinez is aghast at the dangerous way Billy drives. Billy circuitously plows the man down,
who lives to confess. Martinez wants to drive next time, but Billy says he is not ready.

At CIA HQ next day, Higgins uncomfortably announces the results of the sting; testimony
against Global Intel, convictions for the criminal Niemeyer and his associates, and a victory for
the CIA, all due to Bishop’s assistance. The Justice department has got them in Federal lockdown
on multiple counts on varying charges. The country owes him a debt of gratitude. Bishop asks if
it hurt Higgins to say it and Higgins replies ’only in my soul’.

Higgins says no more hacking for Bishop or he goes on the terrorist watch list. Bishops asks
Hud to come drinking with the ODS but the declines. At the bar, Bishop hosts another ODS past
anecdote and watches Rick.

Then he says to Martinez that he has been watching him, and ’no’. Martinez in his opinion is
missing the allure that Dorsey, Billy and Casey all have. Michael is the full package, Billy could
charm the pantsuit off Barbara Bush, and Casey has something he can’t put his finger on. Casey
sits electrocuting things with his fingers. Michael says he may be confusing allure with wattage.
But Rick just doesn’t measure up in the sex appeal department.

Then Deputy Director Ferrar walks up to them and puts her hand on Rick’s shoulder, in
a stunning red dress, saying ’There you are’ to Rick. (The dating is not even close to covert
anymore). Rick smugly walks off with her. A delighted Bishop pauses, then confides to the ODS
group ’the kid has got it in spades’. They all laugh and drink to Rick’s ODS qualities.
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Deep Cover Band

Season 1
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 11

Originally aired: Saturday July 2, 2011
Writer: Dan E. Fesman
Director: Oz Scott
Show Stars: Freddy Rodriguez (Rick Martinez), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Tim

Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), James Murray (Billy Collins), Carmen
Ejogo (Fay Carson), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Kurtwood Smith
(H.J. Higgins)

Recurring Role: Matthew Harrison (Higgin’s Aide), Rick Overton (Operative Alan
Blanke)

Guest Stars: Vincent Gale (Ander Schmidt), John Rothman (Byron Duke), Deni De-
Lory (Counter Attendant), Kurt Max Runte (German Police Lieutenant),
Joel David Moore (Constantine Gallo), Izabella Miko (Greta), Peter Kent
(Klaus), Gerald Plunkett (Gunther Voight), Harald Kositza (German Of-
ficial), Vincent Gale (Schmidt)

Production Code: 1ASM10
Summary: The team is sent to Germany to bring home a rogue agent, but they

soon learn that not only is he still a loyal spy, he’s also uncovered an
underground drug ring and needs their help to take it down.

Martinez is approached by Blank in the CIA tea-
room in Langley, showering him with obsequious
praise and bribing him with exotic coffee and mas-
sage skills. Martinez challenges Blank that he is
using him to get to his girlfriend, Deputy Director
Ferrar. Blank wants Rick to give Adele the mission
reports that will qualify Blank for assignments.
Rock denies the honor.

The team assemble in Deputy Director Ferrar’s
office, where she is filling in for a vacationing Hig-
gins. Casey suggests she show up Higgins and take
his job. She declines but shows the team a video of
a undercover European CIA operative. He is diving
into a car during an illegal act and the team as-
sumes he has gone native, turned into his cover for
real. They are assigned to go to Hamburg and pull

him out. They also must close the cover operation, a beer hall, and end any ties to CIA in doing
so. The Duke, the CIA front mastermind, is not pleased.

The operatives are cynical about Gallo’s motives after viewing a last transmission where the
CIA man disclaims any further mission duties. In the video a panicked Gallo disavows further
CIA involvement on any terms. In Europe, the team descend on the operative Gallo in the CIA
cover bar. He is unprepared to face the fact he is implicated in criminal activity himself.

Gallo thinks at first they are customers and is stunned to see they are CIA. He claims he can’t
leave because he can’t go back to the normal life. He is too invested in the role. Dorsey says he
understands better than anybody ( a nod to his failed marriage to Fay) but must come with them
and abort the mission. Dorsey says he’s been scrubbed.

Gallo says he must show them something and goes to the back room. He fakes out Martinez
and Dorsey and bails out, jumps on a moped to flee. Billy and Casey follow, with Billy giving
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Constantine Gallo a sporting chance. Casey asks if he is waiting for peace in the Middle East
before catching up to Gallo.

The moped runs off the road in the chase and ends up in the drink. No buble shows on the
surface and no body surfaces. Casey is irritated. Dorsey reviews the take on Voight from Gallo’s
hard drive. That night the ODS drink a toast to a fallen comrade. Rick feels guilty and Casey tells
him to channel it into an effective and useful rage against the criminals. Casey says Gallo took a
long walk off a short pier.

Rick, the softie, empathizes with the revenge theory against Gallo’s real killer, the drug runner
Voight. He gets the idea to get a sting on the German heroin smuggler anyway, a mastermind
European super criminal named Gunther Voight. This man has been channeling Afghan drugs
through the Taliban networks. Gallo said Voight was clever, had a sixth sense when it came to
legal traps.

Martinez is led into organizing ten kilos of heroin to be sent from Langley. Rick is chagrined
that the ODS crew let him slowly find his way to their idea of keeping the mission alive via
another heroin source for Voight. The Duke can hand them Valhalla Enterprises to pose as a
drug fence.

One sticky problem: how to get the heroin to the ODS. The men tap Rick to sweet talk Ferrar
to get it. Adele Ferrar is reluctant but as Martinez points out, how much better this op will look
for her to pull off while Higgins is off shooting with Donald Rumsfeld. The team prod Rick to
leverage his dating connection with Deputy Director Ferrar to extend their mission. Martinez
tells Adele the mission has shifted.

Ferrar is flummoxed to realize that Martinez has weighed her ambition correctly. Pulling off
the arrest of Voight while Higgins is out would be a career coup. Martinez feels guilty for pulling
heartstrings over the dead Gallo to get her to do it.

Blank is set up to smuggle the ten kilos to Germany. Adele Ferrar meets with hallway monitor
Blank and says he is the perfect man for the job. Blank admits to Ferrar he knows he is expend-
able but relieved the smuggling with not involve internal orifices per his past experience and is
clear of bodily searches. This is not an MVP task.

Thus, the drug brick is on the way. This is bait for Billy to pretend to be a drug smuggler
distributor, the chief of Valhalla Records. Valhalla is another CIA cover op, kept alive for conve-
nience. Billy is now the organizer of a tour for an industrial folk-rock group. Billy poses at the
bar which was Gallo’s CIA cover, and meets a stunning blonde. Dorsey sees her first and tells
Billy not to lose his head. She tells Billy she is not the woman for him when Billy almost has a
stroke upon seeing her. But he is interrupted while hitting on her when Voight’s people arrive.

Billy smoothly covers for his faux pas when told the blonde is ’taken’: She is Voight’s girlfriend.
But Dorsey panics because the handler wants to take Billy to meet Voight immediately. Rick must
plant a microphone on on of the head goon’s jackets while Billy keeps them talking. Martinez
must match the button and re-attach it much faster now. Billy grasps at straws.

Dorsey alerts Billy the mike is planted and reminds him to dump the earwig on his way out.
Dorsey snaps it up while Casey follows him out.

On the ride over, Billy makes small talk but the men don’t join in. They arrive with the
girlfriend but first Billy must undergo a security protocol. This is a tense meeting. Billy cheerfully
admits to be sellign drugs but gets a backhand. He gets roughed up and told not to deal in
specifics when alluding to the drugs. Billy says they are a bit heavy handed with the message.

Billy finally gets brought into the room with Voight. Then he comes face to face with a (living)
Gallo. Voight is a cool customer, taking Billy for a single malt Scotch man. Gallo fixes Billy
a Scotch and points out that Valhalla has a thready reputation. Billy punts and Billy points
out they can distribute ’music’ product anywhere in Europe without unwanted political or law
enforcement connections. Billy contains his shock at seeing Gallo alive.

Billy can’t break his cover or Gallo’s but Voight says he can be trusted. the ODS realizes that
Gallo has become a trusted member of Voight’s staff. Voight wavers on whether to do a deal,
saying Billy isn’t in town long enough to establish trust. Meanwhile Dorsey is informed by Ferrar
that Blank is the patsy for the heroin

The ODS have shadowed Billy to the meet with Voight, but stop from bombing the study
wall open to get him out, when they hear Gallo’s voice. Deputy Director Ferrar is not pleased at
this revelation and questions Gallo’s sanity. She also tasks Rick with using their relationship to
advance his own career. Billy cautions Martinez that Gallo is right, women and a picket fence
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aren’t for operatives. Billy advises Rick that using up his relationship currency with Ferrar for
the mission isn;t worth it.

Behind the scenes, Dorsey, Billy and Casey draw out Gallo on why he faked his own death.
They demand he come back with them. He says he is in love with Greta, Voight’s girlfriend
and that she is pregnant with his baby. He can’t leave. They point out the faked death was
unnecessary. Gallo says he thought they would simply return to the USA. Gallo says Voight is
ungettable, but he can’t leave his girlfriend pregnant and in Voight’s hands. He says he knew the
CIA handlers wouldn’t understand. Rick is quick to sympathize.

At the airport, Blank tries to ham-hand the heroin brick in an unmentionable place before
boarding his flight. Out of sheer nervous ineptness, Blank overpacks his suitcase, acts weird,
and attracts attention. On arrival in Germany he foolishly mocks the Customs man’s accent and
gets caught immediately with the ten kilos of premium grade heroin stuff. Dorsey is upset to hear
of this, because Voight has taken the bait and wants the drug deal to go down.the ten kilos was
the sample.

Dorsey had thought to wait for Voight’s interest in Valhalla to mature, but Greta says her
pregnancy will soon show and she can’t get away from Voight alone. He must be behind bars.
Billy and the group therefore decide to advance Voight’s timetable for a new source by requesting
Adele to order a drone strike on a Pakistani drug run. Ferrar works the diplomatic channels to
get both the operative Blank and the heroin brick clear for the deal.

Billy waits at the CIA cover establishment bar for instructions. Then the girlfriend, Greta,
comes and tells them she knows they were involved because a shipment just got stopped incom-
ing to Voight. The goon with the planted microphone comes in. Billy doesn’t have the heroin yet
and must stall. Billy advises him they are now business partners and must have a drink. But the
man then detects the button bug and moves to inform Voight, who will be spooked into backing
off.

They hide the dead goon, who gets knocked flat. Casey says they have to hide him for six
hours and hopes Voight will think he just vanished on a bender.

Ferrar tells a disappointed Dorsey that now German police must be involved in the bust
because they want a piece of Voight. Gallo repeats that Voight is too smart to get caught with his
pants down and it’s never happened yet. (Blank still is in Customs).

But then Voight himself comes to the bar, and the forceful henchman sweeps Billy off in a
limousine and Billy can’t say no because this is the deal he has presumably been working for.
Billy pretends to be pleased. But Voight outsmarts the ODS and spirits Greta and Billy to a third
destination to wait for the successful outcome of the drug deal exchange.

At the checkpoint, Dorsey is constrained in action and limited by German police command,
who apprehend the drug bust too soon and get only Voight’s face men with no connection to
Voight himself. The ODS is stumped and the police angry with no trophy criminal for the trouble.
Gallo had said that the man was too smart to be tricked into making a mistake.

At the safe house, Voight is informed of the bust and immediately suspects Billy while ob-
serving his goon is missing. Dorsey and Gallo pop in to save Billy and Greta, but Voight smirks
nothing can be pinned on him. Then Voight is told Gallo is undercover CIA, has been privy to his
details for two years, and that his girlfriend his having a baby that is not his, but Gallo’s. The
ODS throw this in his face and then smugly run out of the building.

The mastermind is stunned. In a fury, a vengeful Voight grabs a gun off one of his dead
operatives lying on the floor and pursues Gallo into the street. He aims to shoot the gun at Gallo
just as police cars drive up and the headlights have him in view. This is the gun going off on his
clean rap sheet that even a smoothie like Voight can’t unring. German police arrest Voight and
move him off.

Back at Langley, the Duke briefs the group on a new cover operation. The German beer
hall made money under Gallo’s management, and the Duke wants to return some value to the
American people. He shows them slides of an eastern school campus. Duke is upset the beer hall
has to close. He runs the worldwide network of CIA cover businesses.

Gallo is fitted with a new cover as a dining hall manager at an exclusive prep school for rich
kids. Billionaires from all over the world send their children to this elite place. His job is to report
any intimate chatter about upstart regimes and banana republic revolutions he might hear in
the mess hall. Duke points out tuition is free, and Gallo and Greta are gleeful their (and their
child’s) future is taking shape.
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Martinez and Ferrar walk the halls at CIA, newly leery of each other. They have an awkward
moment, because she says that if he is really as ambitious as she is, they are too much alike
to continue in a relationship. But Martinez counters that he has a good heart, proved by his
sympathy with Gallo, which means they can’t really be all that alike and thus can keep dating.

Blank, still in custody, undergoes an armed cavity search at the airport and his fate is uncer-
tain.
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Mincemeat

Season 1
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 12

Originally aired: Saturday July 9, 2011
Writer: Ed Zuckerman
Director: Ron Underwood
Show Stars: Freddy Rodriguez (Rick Martinez), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Tim

Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), James Murray (Billy Collins), Carmen
Ejogo (Fay Carson), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Kurtwood Smith
(H.J. Higgins)

Recurring Role: Rick Overton (Operative Alan Blanke), Matthew Harrison (Higgin’s
Aide)

Guest Stars: Anousha Alamian (Bodyguard), Michael Badalucco (Fred Farmer),
Mina E. Mina (Sajadi), Ahriman Padrad (Guard), Tony Amendola (Be-
lada Mehrak), Alisen Down (Dr. Sheila Levine), Stephen Lobo (Rostam
Mehrak), Michael Benyaer (Sadegh Mehrak)

Production Code: 1ASM11
Summary: The CHAOS agents head to the Middle East to influence a dicta-

tor’s choice in naming his successor. With the current dictator on his
deathbed, their goal is to keep his violent son from assuming power.

In Europe, Dorsey poses an an orderly pushing
Billy in a wheelchair through a VIP billionaire’s
hospital. Casey poses as a room service orderly de-
livering mung bean porridge. Rick disables the elec-
trical system. Casey pretends to deliver food. The
guards pat him down. Wheeling the porridge into
the hospital room, Casey pulls a wicked knife on
the dictator in the hospital bed and demands he
mictorate into a cup. Eying the knife, the patient in
the bed cooperates.

In Langley, Rick Martinez proudly places the
cup of urine on Adele Ferrar’s desk. She directs him
to the lab, where it is tested. The analysis shows he
is dying of liver cancer. Ferrar tells the ODS that the
dictator will die leaving his sadistic son in power.
The dying man has another son, a London playboy
who gets checks from the old man but eschews any

part of the country’s involvement. The butcher of Mirestan has only weeks to live. The sadistic
Sadeg cannot get control.

The other son, Sadeg, will take power uness something changes. Four American hikers have
been arrested for suspected espionage. The country is a police state. The mission is to get the
hostages out and replace the violent heir apparent with Rostan Merrick. Previously he wanted
nothing to with the politics and the goal is to change his mind. Dorsey outlines the mission to
get the frivolous playboy back in control of the state. Casey suggests operation mincement.This
is an operation from Sicily in 1943 where a faked plane crash left a body with fake orders that
mislead the Germans.

They prepare the dead body of a deputy chief from the file department, a man who always
wanted to get into the field. Casey and Rick will prepare the body and dump it for discovery. The
back story ad legend are complete. Meanwhile Dorsey and Billy will pose as Doctor and Nurse to
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treat Merrick with a fake poison, a snake venom which is really steroids. The man will feel better
in the short term enough to trust Dorsey and Collins. Sadig, tsychopath son of Merrick, must be
framed by the phony documents to make the dying dictator to give control of the country to his
son Rostan.

To sway Rostan to give up the party life they need someone female to help persuade him.
Martinez bribes Ferrar with a new Armani dress to make Rostan get serious and outgrow the
playboy life. Scheduled to attend a charity party, Adele Ferrar agrees to comes on the mission to
get him away from the society round. She knew him in London briefly, which makes Martinez
uncomfortable. In London, Ferrar throws a drink in Rostan’s face and gets his attention. Casey
admires Ferrar’s tradecraft in getting Rostan to the hotel room, where Casey briefs Rostan on the
mission.

Rostan wants nothing to do with it. Martinez outlines the assumption of power by Rostan in
Merakstan aided by the CIA. Adele stops Rostan from leaving by saying his father has incurable
cancer and has only weeks to live.

In Merakstan, Dorsey and Billy arrive to treat the dictator with the fake cure. They have the
venom of the blue devil octopus. The dictator points out the last doctors are imprisoned. They
administer the poison and the man immediately feels the effects of the steroids. Merrick feels
good and does not understand why the cure has not been brought to him before. Dorsey hints
that whomever has been in charge of his care did not want the best care.

The sadistic son intrudes and separates Dorsey and Billy, claiming to know who they are.
Sadig almost puts a fork through Michael’s hand. He says they are quacks and when his father
deteriorates he will snatch them and throw them in prison. Sadig says they are charlatans. But
when Rostan arrives, he is distracted.

Rostan arrives and is met with suspicion and scorn by his brother Sadig. Rostan says he
heard that Merrick was in poor health. The father is overjoyed and claims that he is in good
health. But the bickering continues and Michael says that this is not good for the patient.

After witnessing how Rostan is treated by his brother Dorsey and Billy approach Rostan in his
hotel room. Dorsey and Billy get Rostan to bring them to where the hikers are being imprisoned.
A shocked Rostan insists the frozen scared hikers get three meals a day and humanitarian
treatment. Then Rostan is upset to find his former tutor jailed also. Approaching the man, Rostan
gets told off by the scared and angry man.

Meanwhile Casey and Rick fix the body of the decoy with perfect attributes, documents and
details. Casey is impressed. The body does not float and sinks. The men are stunned. Casey
reports this to Ferrar and they have to get another body. Blank is in charge of the second set of
documents. Ferrar notices he does not write anything down.

At the jail, the old man Mr. Sajati tells Rostan everything. Rostan is forced to confront the
truth about his father’s regime. The playboy is angry that the man who taught him everything is
trapped in a prison. On their way downstairs Sadig’s men intercept them and arrest Dorsey and
Collins. Sadig meanly taunts Rostan. He clearly wants the country for his own evil ends.

In Langley, word of the mincemeat debacle is getting out. The Vice President wants updates on
the hour. This signals a total lack of confidence and Fay tells Ferrar they have to get Operation
Mincemeat work or it’s on them. Casey and Martinez plant the second body with improvised
documents from Operative Blank. Casey dives underwater and plants the body on the coast.
Martinez says a burial at sea prayer for the dead man.

After they are freed, Rostan asks questions. Dorsey and Billy outline the help Rostan could
expect if he decides to take power. Rostan wants a bloodless revolution. Michael tells Rostan he
can change things but the playboy is dubious. Billy starts talking about JFK, Churchill, and Abe
Lincoln were playboys who succeeded in politics. Billy says wine and women are optional.

But when the body is discovered, the dying dictator finds documents that implicate Rostan,
not Sadig as planned. Sadig is quick to point the finger at Rostan for the five million dollars
deposit from the CIA to be President for life in Merakistan. Rostan confirms they are who they
say they are, but the dictator says they will be killed if the treatment fails. Then Rostan and the
CIA men are arrested and taken away.

But the dictator finds Rostan later, and says the papers were so filled with errors it was
obviously a CIA ploy to fool him. He then shoots the guards and says all the palace guard are
loyal to his awful son. Dorsey and Collins calmly remove the weapons from the dead guards.
Dorsey calls Martinez, who is waiting in the gardens.
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Merreck knows he will die, and he charges Rostan with running the country. Rostan assures
his father he never betrayed him. Billy and Dorsey get Rostan safely outside to the bridge where
Martinez is awaiting them, but Sadig comes with mens and guns. Then Casey wades in, his fists
making the world safe for democracy again. The dictator dies that evening and power is handed
to Rostan. The hikers are flown back to the United States.

In Langley, the VP is coming to the CIA to commendate the men who made the mission pos-
sible. Blank is very excited. The ODS thank the services man for his brilliant move to obfuscate
the names in the corpse documents. He denies it and they all stop in their tracks, realizing how
close they came to danger, in the hallway on the way to the ceremony. Blank is panicked and
apologetic. Dorsey realizes that it was Blank’s error that made the mission a success.They agree
not to share this detail.
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Proof of Life

Season 1
Episode Number: 13
Season Episode: 13

Originally aired: Saturday July 16, 2011
Writer: Ed Zimmerman, Chris Black
Director: Jerry Levine
Show Stars: Freddy Rodriguez (Rick Martinez), Eric Close (Michael Dorset), Tim

Blake Nelson (Casey Malick), James Murray (Billy Collins), Carmen
Ejogo (Fay Carson), Christina Cole (Adele Ferrer), Kurtwood Smith
(H.J. Higgins)

Recurring Role: Rick Overton (Operative Alan Blanke), Matthew Harrison (Higgin’s
Aide)

Guest Stars: C. Thomas Howell (Carson Simms), Margo Martindale (Doris Blashik),
Jesse Borrego (Ernesto Salazar), Paul Wu (Chakan), David Orth (Har-
ris), Eric Breker (Griggs)

Production Code: 1ASM12
Summary: A former team member who was thought to be dead is actually being

held hostage in Panama. Risking their careers and lives, the ODS head
out, on another rogue mission, to bring him back.

Martinez is cleared for his first solo mis-
sion in Bangkok by Higgins. The ODS
predict he will fail. Rick must turn his
asset. Rick feels patronized. Even Ferrare
feels this is amusing. Rick gets sex advice
because Thailand is a zone of adult recre-
ation. Rick is embarrassed.

On the mission the man meets Rick
but gives him a disk. Rick traps the
$10,000 with currency dye. After seeing
the disk contents on his laptop the ODS
ride in and bust it up. Rick gets hit after
giving him the combination and gets an-
gry that he was wrecked. Dorsey says the
data is five years old. Rick threw away the
money according to Dorsey and Higgins is
acid-tongued disappointed.

On the disk is found by Fay a photograph of a man Sims they thought was dead. Billy, Dorsey
and Casey exchange glances. This hostage is Carson Sims, a member of the ODS whose desk
Rick now sits at. This is why there was an empty desk when Rick came on board at CIA. He was
lost in n ODS mission is North Africa against a money counterfeiter when the local authorities
did not show up to back up the mission.

They plan a rescue. Blank si enthusiastic Sims is alive and tels Rick he will make room for
Rick on a team of his won Sims is being held by Ernesto Salazar, a high end counterfeit money
trafficker who is wanted by the Treasury Dept. The ODS ask Treasury to help but they won’t
share intel on where Salazar is. They don’t care about his tenure of Sim being an agent or length
of his inmprisonment.

The Treasury chief Harris says that The ODS data is a cartoon and Sims might be dead.
Dorsey plants a toy robot with a bug in it on the Treasury chief’s desk. Dorsey knows he likes
robots. But the man won’t help them because they are too invested in getting Salazar themselves.
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They say the ODS blew it last time in North Africa. Harris says when they bust Salazar they’ll get
around to Sims.

The bug transmitter captures tons of Treasury stuff. Natalie examines the data. The haul of
intel from the Treasury computer show Salazar is now in Panama. This is a Free Trade Zone.
The counterfeit activity at the high end is in play. The Secret Service is in charge. They show the
Service the photograph as proof of life. Carson Sims is alive. But only the ODS care.

Natalie from the counterfeit money department will go and tempt Salazar with ink that cannot
be traced. She says that she is pleased to see Rick still around, since word is out about Sims
and the ODS is a four man operation. Natalie knows the workings of the counterfeit world. She
requires a ticket to Panama and a traveling companion, blinking her eyes at Rick.

The Treasury Chief forces his way into Higgin’s office, with the robot, breathing fire. He says
that the ODS went over the line planting the robot on his desk and sniffing. They promise White
House retribution. They have the President’s ear and he says they will have Higgin’s head unless
the ODS gets axed and imprisoned. Higgins is now having to choose to axe the ODS on mission
or save his own career.

As the group leave on a plane to Panama, Higgins arrives at the airstrip. He says going on
the plane will put them in violation of the law. Higgins say there is a good chance they won’t be
coming home. Higgins says he won’t let them drag the Agency down. Dorsey says thanks and
they all get on the plane anyway. A few weeks pass as they set up their covers.

In Panama, Natalie sets up the meet with Salazar. Her cover is as Marguerite, who knows the
Treasury is onto him. She says she has clean ink and his source is tainted. She gives Salazar a
sample. Rick poses as her ’Companion’. Salazar is amused. They demonstrate on one of Salazar’s
new fake bills finding the radioactive ink. He is not pleased and notices the Treasury van taking
pictures with a long distance lens.

Billy gets some local kids to bring them some spray paint and he and Dorsey paint ’U.S. Spies’
on the back of the Treasury van. As Salazar moves off, the van is stopped by Panamanian police.
Fay calls Dorsey that night to say that chatter on the intel circuit is about a blown Treasury op
and Higgins is getting heat. The White House is involved. She tells him where the bug in the ink
went.

In Langley, Ferrare approaches Higgins about helping but is shut down. She is shocked he
will turn in the ODS to save his own neck. Higgins coaches Ferrare on what to do in the position
of Director. He says what would she do in his place? He says after he sacrifices himself for the
ODS, everything or everyone they have have touched will be tainted. He says all his recruits and
case will be burnt, other people’s lives ruined.

In Panama, they follow Salazar to his compound. Meanwhile Natalie fills Rick in on her Gre-
cian adventure. She says Rick should think about coming down to the counterfeit department
of CIA. She asks if he likes powerful women. The ODS tracks the Salazar goons to a likely ware-
house where they throw out uneaten food.

They rescue Sims, played by C. Thomas Howell. Michael calls him ’brother’. Casey says ’came
over’ and Sims says he never doubted it for a minute. (Sims has been imprisoned for three years).
Rick is introduced to Sims and he is amused that the ODS finally rescued him. Dorsey calls Fay
to arrange a chopper. Fay is pleased about the rescue. But his head will roll if he steps foot on
the helicopter.

Treasury has gotten Higgins to sell them out and charges have been brought against the ODS
and they are wanted for things like tampering with a federal investigation, obstruction and theft
of classified documents. Sims says he didn’t get a memo kicking him off the ODS. Sims won’t
turn himself over and Dorsey suggest they grab Salazar and use him to barter their way back to
the CIA. Dorsey says if they gave Treasury the win they might do a deal and release the charges.

They torch half a billion in counterfeit money. The ink and gas to run the press serve as
incinerator. Sims gleefully lights it up and Billy says he has missed him. Casey says it burns
like real money. Sims has been prisoner for three years and knows Salazars operations. He says
Salazar keeps the plates with him, and Rick says if they put Salazar on the run he’ll be forced to
take the plates with him.

The ODS set up the sting at the airport. Rick intercepts Ernesto Salazar, saying he is trying
to get out of the country too. Rick tells Salazar if he goes outside he will be arrested and the
mayhem will stop him from catching a plane out as well. He tells Salazar he knows a private
airstrip and if he saves him they can go into business together.
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As Rick exits with Salazar, Sims handcuffs Rick to Ernesto Salazar and runs off with the
plates, calling them back pay for the three years he spent chained up. He says Rick will be great
in the ODS he has what it takes. Martinez is stunned and Salazar disbelieving.

At the hotel, they are on the run. Billy says they have been stabbed in the back. Natalie says
Sims cracked. She fixes Rick a strawberry dacquiri. She makes another move on Martinez. She
tells Rick when Deputy Director Ferrar breaks his heart she will be waiting.

Dorsey and Billy moan about Sims double crossing them. But Natalie says boo-hoo. She says
Sims was the bargaining chip. Now they have Salazar they can use him as their bargaining chip
to break the charges. He is the key to the criminal case. Salazar is tied in a knot on the floor as
they drink cocktails with parasols in them. They spend weeks hiding out all over the world.

But Rick says if they turn Salazar into the Treasury department they can get reduced sen-
tences. Natalie says the buyers for the counterfeit plates are in a rarefied atmosphere. Sims has
never met Natalie and she puts out word on her network the plates are wanted. Sims has been
in prison so long that he can’t wait to sell them, like the smart move would be. Sims gets to the
meet with Natalie to say she is hard to get hold of and turns to find the ODS behind him.

Rick then arrives in the CIA parking garage in Langley to give the plates to Ferrar to give them
to Higgins. He says it all will be cleared up in the morning. (They have been apart two months).
Nervously she says he is still wanted. But then she tells him to get in the car and they kiss.

Treasury then stands in Higgin’s office, demanding the ODS behind bars as Higgins stands
him down. Higgins calmly wants to talk a deal. Treasury cheif Harris says they can’t because they
have no evidence and no suspect. Then the men say theoretically there is a satelite surveillance
black site in Europe where Salazar is being humanely held in custody. Higgins suggests he can
give them Salazar and the counterfeiting plates, the case on a silver platter, and the men are
cleared.

Blank is thrilled to see them all back. (Sims is retired forcibly). Blank says that Rick has
written his own legend in the sky. Michael prods Blank about a matter and Blank says he took
care of it They got Blank to get him his own desk, not Sim’s old desk. But the desk is gone and
the new one will take 6-8 weeks. Rick wryly sits with no desk and the other men sit at their ODS
desk and look back and forth at him.
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Actor Appearances

A
Anousha Alamian . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0112 (Bodyguard)
Tony Ali . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0107 (Hassan Ohana); 0109 (Hassan)
Tony Amendola. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0112 (Belada Mehrak)

B
Michael Badalucco . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0103 (Fred Farmer); 0110 (Fred Farmer); 0112 (Fred
Farmer)

Bambadjan Bamba .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Kaya)

Patrick Bauchau .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0107 (Renard)

Ed Begley Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Operative Corwin)

Michael Benyaer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0112 (Sadegh Mehrak)

Jesse Borrego . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0113 (Ernesto Salazar)

Bruce Boxleitner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0110 (Ray Bishop)

Eric Breker . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0113 (Griggs)

Frank Bruynbroek . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Vidor)

C
Dmitry Chepovetsky . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Albert)
James Michael Connor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Donald Combs)

D
Deni DeLory . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0111 (Counter Attendant)
Illeana Douglas. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0104 (Linda)
Alisen Down .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0112 (Dr. Sheila Levine)
Bill Duke . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (General Margolis)

E
Tommy Europe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Policeman)
Marina Eva . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Tatiana)
Vanessa Evancic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Girl at Roadblock)
Lesley Ewen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Older Woman)

F
Colin Foo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Mr. Lee)
Emily Foxler . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Masha)
Robert Foxworth . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Bernard LaRouche)

G
Vincent Gale. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0111 (Ander Schmidt); 0111 (Schmidt)
Adam Godley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Jonathan Aldridge)

H
Molly Hagan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0101 (Ms. Lurkin); 0105 (Ms. Lurkin)
Peter Hanlon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Card Player)
Matthew Harrison . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

0103 (Higgins’ Aide); 0104 (Higgins’ Aide); 0105 (Hig-
gin’s Aide); 0107 (Higgin’s Aide); 0108 (Hig-
gin’s Aide); 0109 (Higgin’s Aide); 0110 (Hig-
gin’s Aide); 0111 (Higgin’s Aide); 0112 (Hig-
gin’s Aide); 0113 (Higgin’s Aide)

Ellie Harvie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Lawyer)

Rob Hayter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0109 (Fed#1 / Assassin); 0110 (Fed #1/Assassin)

Gregg Henry . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0109 (Kurt Niemeyer); 0110 (Kurt Neimeyer)

C. Thomas Howell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0113 (Carson Simms)

Steve Hytner. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0107 (Barry)

J
Luis Javier. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Thug #1)
Noel Johansen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0109 (Sam Crowley); 0110 (Sam Crowley)
Denise Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Operative Burns)
Alessandro Juliani . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0101 (Higgins’ Aide); 0106 (Aide)

K
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Hiro Kanagawa . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Operative Flowers)

Branka Katic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Sophia Vukola)

Peter Kent . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0111 (Klaus)

Raphael Kepinski . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Jovan)

Harald Kositza. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0111 (German Official)

Boris Krutonog . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Sokolov)

L
Carlos Leal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0107 (Luc Mounia)
Zen Shane Lim .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Chang)
John Livingston . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Operative Lloyd)
Stephen Lobo. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0112 (Rostam Mehrak)
Simon Longmore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (CIA Security Guard)
Derek Lowe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Operative Reed)
Pasha Lychnikoff. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Alexei Dratschev)

M
Tzi Ma. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0104 (Quon)
Alexander Mandra . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (GRU Officer)
Margo Martindale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0101 (Doris Balshik); 0113 (Doris Blashik)
Kelly Metzger . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Operative Mercer)
Izabella Miko . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0111 (Greta)
Tina Milo Milivojevic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Election Worker)
Mina E. Mina . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0112 (Sajadi)
Joel David Moore. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0111 (Constantine Gallo)
Vladmir Moskovchenko. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Dratschev Butler)

N
Tim Blake Nelson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Casey Malick)
Martin Novotny. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0109 (Morgue Clerk)

O
David Orth. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0113 (Harris)
Joy Osmanski . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Unchin Song)
Rick Overton . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

0101 (Operative Alan Blanke); 0103 (Operative Blanke);
0104 (Operative Blanke); 0107 (Operative Blanke);
0108 (Operative Alan Blanke); 0111 (Opera-
tive Alan Blanke); 0112 (Operative Alan Blanke);
0113 (Operative Alan Blanke)

P
Ahriman Padrad. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0112 (Guard)
Shaker Paleja. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (CIA Suit)
Walter Perez . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Felipe)
Sasha Piltsin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Alec)
Gerald Plunkett . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0111 (Gunther Voight)
Roman Podhora . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Romance Tour Operator)
Yaroslav Poverlo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0106 (Viktor)

R
Bruce Ramsay. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0106 (Jean Pierre); 0109 (Jean Pierre)
John Rothman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0111 (Byron Duke)
Kurt Max Runte . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0111 (German Police Lieutenant)
Klara Rybicka . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Brunette)

S
Ahmad Sharmrou. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Moradi)
John Shaw .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Gate Guard)
Eddie Shin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0102 (Lee Quan Song)
Cynthia Stevenson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Violet Green)
J. Douglas Stewart . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (J.O. Mullins)
Malcolm Stewart . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0102 (Burt Hecker); 0105 (Burt Hecker)
Sarah Surh . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Dae)

T
James Tyce . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Soldier #1)

V
Jose Vargas. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Doctor)
Ilia Volok. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Clarkson)

W
Loretta Walsh. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0102 (Linda)
Robert Weiss. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0105 (Operative Adams)
Isiah Whitlock Jr. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Warren Smith)
Pierre Wolff . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0107 (French Intelligence Officer)
Paul Wu.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0113 (Chakan)
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0106 (Irina)
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